Great Swamp

Watershed

™

Association '0'0,

p

7

‘ 8 S
Che T3 T

WATERKEEPER' &1 114N

AFFILIATE

Great Swamp Watershed Association

Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Friday, January 18, 2019
8:00 a.m. - GSWA Headquarters

Agenda

e Approval of Board Minutes from 12/12/2018 Meeting

e Vote — Discussion and Approval of Updated Roles and Responsibilities of a Trustee Document

e Finance Report:

e  Executive Director Report:

e Development Report:

e Next Meeting Date:

e  Other Business

Vote — New Advisory Council Member: Adam Psichos

Dec. 2018 Budget Performance
Review Audit and 990

Water Quality Programs

Education and Outreach
Land Stewardship
Communications and Social Media

Monthly Development Summary

Grant Activity Report

Friday, March 22, 2019

e Adjourn

Upcomling Events
Sunday, January 20 Beer & Pizza Pub Quiz 2:00 p.m. GSWA Headquarters
Thursday, January 24 Pollinator Box Building Workshop 6:30 p.m. GSWA Headquarters
Saturday, February 2 Groundhog Day Hike 12:00 p.m. Rifle Camp Park
Thursday, February 7 Environmentally-Friendly Gardening 6:30 p.m. Parsippany Library
Tuesday, February 12 Storm Water Management 6:30 p.m. Summit Library
Wednesday, February 13 Valentine’s Wine and Chocolate Tasting 5:30 p.m. GSWA Headquarters
Saturday, February 16 President’s Day Dog Walk 1:00 p.m. CMA




Great Swamp Watershed Association
Annual Meeting and Board Meeting Minutes

Dec 12, 2018
G:\Sue Levine\board meeting\board meeting minutes
Attending:
Deb Apruzzese | Gerry Jo Cranmer | Michael Dee Tony DellaPelle | Jay Delaney Jr
P P A P A
Mary Horn Jane Kendall Matt Krauser Teresa Lane Cathy Lee
P P A A P
John Neale Chris Obropta Lois Olmstead Alan Pfeil Kathy Pfeil
p P A p p
Guy Piserchia | Nic Platt Anthony Sblendorio | Lisa Stevens Frank Stillinger
P P A P P
Kevin Sullivan | Nadine Vitro Giorgios Vlamis
P P p

* P= Present; A = Absent; T= Teleconference

Staff:

Sally Rubin, Sue Levine, Wade Kirby, Rick Porter, Hazel England, Sandra Lavigne,

Debbie Rice, Adam Palmer, Kristina Necovska, Val Thorpe

Annual Meeting came to order: 5:10 p.m.

e Staff members did introductions and identified key responsibilities.
e The LaMorgese property was purchased one year ago in November.
e The communication committee has a campaign to have 1000 new members on
Instagram, please be one of them!
e GSWA has partnered with Students 2 Science (another non-profit), offering the
Environmental Science programs to 300 high school students in Newark and 500
additional students expected this spring.
e Our educational team has reached 2000 students in our historical region and 2000 in
our downstream region this past year.

e Water sampling is continuing to expand downstream with the addition of a new location

in Livingston.

e o o o

Microplastics sampling has started with 10 sample sites in our historic region.

Our annual fundraiser was our most successful ever.

The development committee has a goal to reach 2,100 members by 2021.

GSWA switched auditors as per the policy and Sarbanes Oxley recommendation. The

prior year audit is almost completed, and donations were approximately $810,000 with
a reclass of assets for total assets of $1.6 Million. The endowment funds are at
$1.2Million.

We completed our first year of the 401K and have 100% participation.
The Employee Handbook was modified to capture the New Jersey Paid Sick Leave policy.

1



Board Meeting came to order 5:45pm
Prior Meeting minutes — motion to approve Lisa, Alan 2": Unanimously approved

Board Member - re-election for the second term:
Deb Apruzzese; Nic Platt; Guy Piserchia; Matt Krauser

Motion to approve the re-election of board members — motion Lisa; Kathy Pfeil 2" —
Unanimously approved.

Thank you to the members rolling off the board — John Neale, Jane Kendall, Mary Horn and Lois
Olmstead, we are truly grateful for all you have done and your continued support.

Proposed new board members to join the board -
Reed Auerbach (previously elected), Dot Stillinger, Kate Barry, Eric Inglis, Jordan Glatt

Motion to approve the new board members — Tony, 2" Alan — Unanimously approved.
Advisory Council list — see attached — the participants to be invited annually.

Motion to approve list — Cathy Lee, 2" Gerry Jo — Unanimously approved.

Advisory council members to roll off — see attached.

Proposed New Advisory members
Mary Horn, Jane Kendall, Lois Olmstead and John Neale. Also new to the list is John Donofrio.

Motion to approve the new Advisory Council members and roll off of others as listed — Alan, 2"
Kevin — Unanimously approved.

Gala 2019 -
Honoree suggestions:

e John McFee — Author
e Mikie Sherrill — political
e  Phil Murphy - political

Finance -

e October YTD results were provided, discussed, no issues identified.
e The Endowment was reviewed, discussed, and no issues identified.



Human Resources-

e The Employee Handbook was modified to incorporate the New Jersey Paid Sick Leave

requirements.
It was identified that we need to continue to take actions that benefit our employees

particularly in a strong job market. Health Insurance will be added, however, it will
remain employee paid at this time.

Upcoming Board Meetings — Friday Mornings, 8am:

January 18
March 22

May 31

June 28 - Budget

Meeting adjourned 5:56



Great Swamp

Watershed (CREDIy,
1ati L d L=}

Association :,0.

$
8, Ny oY
DTS

WATERKEEPER' &1 14N
AFFILIATE

Great Swamp Watershed Association

e Vote —Advisory Council Members

Invited To Return: Kathy Abbott Jay Graham, Il
Chris Allyn Claire Griffin Miller
Astri Baillie Pam Harding
Marshall Bartlett Jon Rafalowski
Len Berkowitz Gerry Scully
Peter Birnbaum Alden Siegel
David Budd Julia Somers
Brenda Curnin Frank Stillinger
Susan Deeks Kit Stinson
Dr. Billy Diehl Jeff Webb
Phyllis Fast Ben Wolkowitz

Russ Furnari

e Thank You to Members Rotating Off
the Advisory Council: Cathie Coultas

Theresa Filippone

Roger Siebel

Dot Stillinger

John Donofrio
Mary Horn
Jane Kendall
John Neale
Lois Olmstead

e Vote — New Advisory Council Members:



Great Swamp Watershed Association

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF A TRUSTEE

2019

Purpose: To provide the Board of Trustees with clear expectations for their service and
inform them about their legal and fiduciary responsibilities.

The prime directive is to promote mission fulfillment while ensuring the organization
remains in good standing in the state of New Jersey, and as a public charity (501(c)(3)
organization and otherwise in accordance with applicable law, the Certificate of
Incorporation and the By-Laws.

The Board of Trustees will meet regularly to conduct its business and fulfill its duties in
accordance with its By-Laws, with a minimum of four meetings per year. Board
members are provided with adequate notice of the meeting as well as adequate notice
of the agenda with background information provided in advance in order to make sound
decisions.

The board member responsibilities include:

» Formulate key policies and strategic goals, focusing both on near-term and
longer-term challenges and opportunities.

o Authorize major transactions or other actions.
e Oversee matters critical to the health of the organization.
e Evaluate and help manage risk.

o Steward the resources of the organization for the longer run, not just by
carefully reviewing annual budgets and evaluating operations but also by
encouraging foresight through several budget cycles, considering investments in
light of future evolution, and planning for future capital needs.

e Mentor senior management, provide resources, advice and introductions to help
facilitate operations.

In order to be active and productive members of the Great Swamp Watershed
Association board, trustees will:

e Accept a three-year term of office with the expectation of serving a second term
(with a two term limit);

®=  Be active advocates of GSWA and its mission;

3C 3/31/16 Page 1



Great Swamp Watershed Association

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF A TRUSTEE

= Attend Board meetings and other Board events as scheduled;

= Commit to supporting the financial health of the organization. Make a personal
contribution to the best of one’s ability and or play a primary role in soliciting
significant donations from others and aid in GSWA fundraising efforts;

= Attend the Annual Gala and encourage the participation of others;

= Actively serve on at least one committee of the Board;

= Attend at least two GSWA-sponsored programs per year;

= Encourage others to become members and attend events;

= Acknowledge and comply with GSWA’s Conflict of Interest policy;

= Recommend other individuals to join the GSWA Board of Trustees.

Board of Trustee Training:

A Board Book with the necessary information to perform their duties is available under
the Board Portal of the GSWA website at greatswamp.org.

Board training will include a meeting with staff near the start of the term in order to
establish a better understanding of the organization, employees and mission.

3C 3/31/16 Page 2



ADAM G. PSICHOS

Adam Psichos is Director of the New Jersey Region for The
Glenmede Trust Company N.A. In this capacity, he oversees the firm's
teams in Morristown and Princeton and provides investment
management and wealth advisory solutions to high net worth
individuals, large families, senior executives, and endowments and
foundations.

Adam holds a B.A. degree from Franklin & Marshall College, and a
Master’s degree from New York University. He is a graduate of the
Canon Trust School and the ABA Bank Officer's Compliance program.

Adam and his family make their home in Summit. He is an active
participant in several community and charitable organizations,
including SAGE Eldercare, The Student/Partner Alliance, New Eyes
for the Needy, The Discovery Orchestra, and the Overlook Hospital
Foundation.



| abeyd

00L'8 %16 00L'e Z18'T %0 0 0 uontsnbay pue diyspiemals
£58'62 %29 108'C vGL'L %6E 51z €8 diyspiemels
S$v0'E S1Z'L siemyog
005°Z1 51z 0 1594 21N
001'S1 %01 SP0'G 580°L %152 Zve 858 diyssaquispy
00Z°0L %0 Bossy 6E8' %0t £90°t 609' Buliew
6.8 6.8 dx3 juein uosjep pue apAH
859't %0 868°} 0 %0 09t 0 1oqe| spjoxa uoiBay uoisuedx3
008'€Z %91 Bool'ct 2€0'2 %l 006'2 Sb0'L yoeanQ pue uoneanp3
009'G1 %011 0LL'e WLy %St 88"l £99 asuadx3 juswdojenaq
V2Ll %S 098'¢ 90z %0 €79 0 esuedx3 sUOHEdNUNWIWOY
88185 %88 88v'8S LLbLS %0 001 0 sasuadx3 JusA3 jenuuy
000°0} %6 0082 Lz %004 0 18 aouel|y luny [ A9e20ApY
€42'€8S %86 $96'062 08€'58Z %004 861°LS 60L°L5 [e101 [101KBd 2ARENSIUIWPY
19%°L0} %59 Z62'8S By se %L 991'%Z 0616 asuadx3 aAnensiuIWpY
asuadx3y
0v5'€88 %zzh vLL'PYS 814599 %ELL LEL'BSL L18'8LL 1014 $5019
ovs'ese %zl pLL'PYS 8Lp'699  %ELL L£2°851 LL8'BLL awoou| jejoL
00z %0 08 0 %0 0z 0 o awoou| pazuioBajeaun
00062 %001 000'6Z 00052 %0 0 0 suogeuoq [enpiAIpu| PeloLIsey
00€'2€ %ELL 0L8'S1 698'L1 %19 0zL'L 088'9 awosuy Jayjo g weiboug
00092 0 0 JUaAg )Sa4 2ISN
00Z' %98 009 BLS %G 004 g pauie3 jsasajuj
000'0F %8E 5202 Bsuoz %82 000'% szL'L BuiAlD 8a1snJ) [ENpPIAIPUY|
000'G81 %06 00L'€L 259'59 %06 005°0% 05996 siouo( Jofe [enpiaipu
006'9L %E6 1810y 182 %66 ¥00'2Z ZEL'1T diyssequiajy - [enpiAIpu|
000°0F %001 000'0% 000'0 %0 0 0 MeIQ %P 3UI0OU] JBjSURI] puUny
S6E'SLL %581 568°80L Booe'10z %l 68'7L Booo'oit poddng uonepunoy
59528 %lil ZZS' Ly ¥6L'9p %L 86091 Heiz ajesodion
086'€61 %611 V6161 51£'822 %001 0 002'2 JusA3 [enuuy
awoou|
asuadx3jewosu| LeulpiQ
jebpng |enuuy  jebpngjo %, jeBpngalA  gLoag- Nt  3e6png o % jebpng g1 98@
8102 12quadaqg . siseg |ensooy
aouewouad }obpng ssoT B J4oid 8110140

uoneldossy paysiajep) dwems jeals Wd 8516



Z abey

088 %6¥Z Ze9'eol £5£'85Z m\.ﬂhm_. y 19 65.'66 awoou| JaN
000'SE %0- 205'21 o€- %0 916 0 esuedxgjewoou] Jo)0
0ZL'pe- %00€ 0gL'98 E cee'sse %9l 0.2'8S BG.'G6 awoou| AteuipiQ 1eN
099°L16 %68 5v9'g5Y GE0'L0Y %E8 29v'001 250'e8 asuadx3 ejoL
005 %0 0 0 % 0 0 I1oM - Bunsa sejem
00¥'82 %19 052'0L £18'9 %0852 Z68'c 61L'6 Ayenp sejepm
19bpng |enuuy jebpng jo 9, yebpng QLA . gL 2eQg-|np 1eb6png jo 9, 18bpng o 81 20Q
8102 1oquadaq siseg [enJooy

ajuewoad Jobpng sso g Jijoid
uoneI20Ssy paysiajep, dwemg jeals

G6L/L0/1L0
Wd 85°S



¢ abegq

"1IH {39914 ON SMOHS WV3L LINJWHOT3A3A IHL ¥IAIMOH QI TONODTH NIF8 LIA LON SYH HIADOIML dIHSHIGNIN IHL "FWOINI TVLOL NO LIH ¥3IDDIHL ON ‘8

Buwi L

%6$ @9 {|im sasuadxa Juelb uosiep pue apAH - Buiwi| ‘9

sasusadxa Ja)ndwoo pue sasuadxa jpne - Bujwi| G

iiillem se Jeah Joud mojaq s Buinib pieoq *ajoN ¢4ééBurwn Ajnjedoy v

%5$ Aq 1eBpng Jano BLOIDIA 01§ 186pNg Ul Jou uolepunod Janeq abioag) Hg§ Aq JeBpnq Jaao JslAL G Aq Jebpng
Jano ypemiaapy Higg 196png Jeao st pung Ajunwwod mou - 4990d G4 Aq 18Bpng JeAo S| pund 21igngd Baly Jwwng pajebpng jou sem siy) - J0jeiauab e o) ¥9z7¢ POJEUOP UOIIBPUNO PJOIINS €

Ales ul sweo paysiajepp yooiq Aauo)g HiGS Ag JeBpnq Jano uj awed Jalk ] HG§ 196pnq Jaao pue Buiwg - yuemiasiy A

AOCN Ul Ul 8WED UOZIOoH - Buiiwiy )

810z 1aquasaqg siseg |eniooy
aouewIouad }8bpng sso g jj01d 61/L0/10

uone1d0ssy paysiajep) duwems jealn Wd 856



Executive Director Report for January 2019

I’'m sure everyone else has the same comment this month. It is barely a month since our last
meeting and we had two weeks of holidays, so not a lot has happened. Kind of a nice break
from our usual frenzy!

Due to the government shutdown, the Lower Passaic Superfund meeting has been cancelled. |
also anticipate having to cancel the Rolling Knolls Community Advisory Group meeting for
January, due to the shutdown. Additionally, we are working on a Rolling Knolls grant to the EPA
for funding for independent experts, and that grant is on hold for the same reason.

During December, | met with several potential and current board members. We have held our
board orientation with staff for our new board members.

I met with donors and funders, and we are pursuing some new leads for funding.
I worked on the annual appeal and end of year fundraising.

Hazel and | met with S2S to review how our initial fall programming went, and to plan for our
upcoming spring programs. | reviewed and revised the proposed Memorandum of Agreement
with S2S.

Hazel and | met with someone from Project USE (which | just learned stands for Urban
Suburban Environment). They are a non-profit in Newark. One of their programs is boat
building and taking the kids out on the Passaic in the boat they build. We discussed doing some
water quality testing with those kids and also bringing them out in boats in the Great Swamp,
so they can see the connection of lower Passaic to upper Passaic.

Chris Obropta and | met with people from Eva’s Village in Paterson. They are a large social
service organization. They provide over 1,000 meals per day to individuals in Paterson and
have a large campus in the middle of the city. We discussed possibilities for some green
infrastructure and community gardens.

I was able to take a tour of the Ferber property in Green Village. We are hoping to get this 50
acre parcel preserved, either through PSE&G donating it to the Refuge or through the Open
Space Institute or a combination of the two. | was able to take a tour of the home with Kevin
Sullivan and it actually looks like it would make great office space for GSWA. There is an office
in a small building on the property which could be converted to a great public meeting space.

The staff held program planning meetings and we are gearing up for another busy spring.



GSWA Water Quality Programs
Board Meeting Report

January 2019

Water Quality Reporting

Currently working on assembling the 2018 data and preparing the Water Quality Report Card for the
year. We will be presenting this data at a number of locations, both in our historic area as well as in our
extended downstream area so that we can reach as many communities as possible. The first
presentation has been scheduled for March 12™ at 6pm, at the Summit Free Public Library. We will also
be hosting a presentation at GSWA date TBD.

Water Quality Monitoring
Chemistry Monitoring

All water chemistry data has now been received from the 2018
sampling. This will be compiled and used to create the report card, as
mentioned above, and to help determine areas of concern where
further study or action may be needed.

Moving forward, in 2019, we will continue our third round of sampling
at our expanded locations and begin to plan for our next expansion
down the Passaic River in 2020. We will begin with our first round of
chemistry sampling in February, weather permitting. If anyone is
interested in assisting with sampling, please let me know via email
sandral@greatswamp.org

Figure 1: Great Brook at Foots
pond during Nov chemistry
sampling

Visual Monitoring

Our fall visual assessments are now complete. Inclement weather

throughout the fall made monitoring in some areas more difficult than usual but in the end we had a
very successful year. Overall, throughout the 2018 sampling year, with the help of our amazing team of
volunteers, we have visually monitored 27 sites both in the GSWA watershed and in our expanded
downstream area.

In October, we held our fall Stream Assessment Training at the Florham Park Library. We had a
successful turnout with 12 new volunteers signing up to monitor with GSWA. Six of the volunteers even
began their monitoring this fall not wanting to wait until spring. Our next training will be held on March
23, 2019 (location TBD).

Bacteria Sampling

As discussed in our last report, our summer program was very successful covering 21 sites directly
through GSWA and an additional 7 sites in conjunction with NJDEP. Due to staffing issues the results
from NJDEP have not yet been made available but we hope to have them accessible soon.



In 2019, we look forward to once again working with NJDEP on an expanded bacteria sampling project
as well as continuing to monitor the GSWA sampling sites.

Macroinvertebrate Sampling

The 2018 macroinvertebrate sampling data has now been received at our office and will shortly be

reviewed for addition into the 2018 Water Quality Report Card. For the 2019 season we are looking to
add a new downstream site as well as follow up with some historic sites that have not been monitored
for a few years to keep track of areas where changes have been noted through our visual assessments.

Microplastics Sampling

This fall, GSWA began our new Microplastic sampling program which was

successfully completed in early December. Through the Capitan Planet
Grant, we were able to secure a sampling net that fit the specifications we
designed for sampling in smaller, wadeable, streams. In our region, only
spot sampling has been done in the more downstream (below Millington
gorge), deeper river areas. This downstream sampling used the protocols
that were designed for open water regions where boats could tow a large
net or where the large net could be secured by volunteers and the flow
could be monitored. With our new smaller net, we are able to sample
throughout the watershed in the tributaries that feed into the main stem of
the Passaic River. Samples will be sorted, the process collects sediment and
organic detritus as well as microplastics, and then quantified.

Figure 2: New GSWA Stereoscope

This first round of samples will be filtered and examined at GSWA using a
new microscope secured with grant funding. The attached map indicates the 11 sampling locations for
our 2018 microplastics sampling. Also included are some photographs of our first few days of sampling.

This round of sampling will help to
determine where elevated levels of
microplastics might be found in our
region. Data from this sampling round will
be used to design a larger study in 2019.
The 2019 study samples will be processed
through the laboratory on the Cook
College campus at Rutgers University. .
With funding from a Watershed Institute
grant, we will work with Rutgers to do a 14
more in-depth of study of our selected i
sites. The higher level of processing will
provide a clearer picture of the quantity of
plastics as well as differentiate between
the types of plastics collected.

jermards

Lewis MOMS 1w
w
e Florham Park
° GSWA PRC
9 GSWALB3-MP3
&
o
Q Madison @
[
@29

New Vermon L i

y BREEN VILLAGE Chatham 9 GSWA PRD4
9 955 it QGsmcnz-un
Chatham
Township 9 :
Osborn Milis GSWAPRD35-MP 9
Great Swamp
National Summit
Wildiife
Refuge
9 GSWABBO- MP 5 New
Lord Providence
Stirling Park 9 GSWAPRO27S - MP B

9 GSWA PROUT - MP 6 Wilchung

Berkeley ;
&0 Reservation

Heights
Gillette
GSWAPRDZ - MP 7
Go gle"l._“ o)
o

Mountaingide



Figure 3: Adam Palmer measuring ﬂowwhi!e ) ; .
sampling Figure 4: Kathie Schwartz and Cathy Lee collecting visual
assessments data in conjunction with microplastic sampling

Figure 5: GSWA Microplastic sampling net in the water in
Great Brook

Figure 6: Sandra LaVigne and Adam Palmer setting the
microplastic net for sampling in Black Brook

Figure 7: First collected
Microplastic Sample - Loantaka
Brook



Education and Outreach Board Report January 5, 2019

Overview:

With only a month since the last
education report, and that time
period including the holidays, we
have mostly news on successful
public programs to report. We
continue to attract full houses to
our briefings and large turnouts to
our hikes and outdoor programs.
Planning for the second half of
the school year with our S25 and school partners continues, and work on entry into Paterson
schools through the association of school principals is making progress. A lively and well
attended Education and Outreach meeting in early December helped us focus our educational
offerings for the first half of 2019, and the idea for a collaborative environmental movies series
held in conjunction with several area libraries came to the fore. Three movies with a
consistent environmental theme to be held one per month, and piggybacking on the success of
‘Chasing Ice’ movie we showed to sellout crowds last winter will be advertised and held in
larger audience capacity locations. The meeting reinforced the value of collaborating with other
agencies where this makes sense, to get our message out to new R
audiences, and to share resources for most effectiveness. We
welcome our several new board members, and in light of that
will recap a little on last month’s year end numbers.

In 2018 we offered:

e 52 upstream programs to 2,160 individuals in our
historic range- (the area covering the communities of
the ten towns comprising great Swamp through to
Summit)

e 50 downstream programs (in communities beyond
Summit through to Newark) to more than 2,070
individuals.

We have begun to record the intensity of interaction with each
type of programming segment in a color coded breakdown (See
attached spreadheet). This allows us to see the type of
programming we are focusing on at a glance. Please take a look at
the breakdown of programs offered by GSWA with an effort to show
how much of our focus is spent on them. Green programs are highly
active and a dominant focus, orange programs are offered but constitute a smaller time investment, and

red indicated programs that we have offered



Our December public programming included a full to
bursting breakfast briefing (held at the Somerset
Environmental Education Center while the GSWA office
was under construction). Ana Baptista , Chair of Lower
Passaic Superfund Community Action Group gave an
explanation of the history and a current update on the EPA
Superfund process in the lower Passaic. Several attendees
. asked questions regarding the CAG process for superfund
sites, and were interested as part of the newly formed CAG
for the Rolling Knolls Landfill clean up.

Our December second Saturday Stewardship
workday and hike had more than 10 attendees
helping to maintain order on our rain ravaged trails
at the CMA. We edged and cleared the green trails
and conducted natural history hikes to close out the AR R st

program. 'g_— rﬂ
N 'y
; y g

We closed out the old year and brought in the New
Year with a pair of outdoor programs. On
December 30", 20 hardy souls outwitted the
Federal Shutdown to hike behind the scenes at the
Great Swamp Wildlife Management Area. Kids of all
ages showed up for the nature detective hike, some
with toy magnifiers and some with binoculars to better see the wildlife. We were rewarded with fox,
coyote and squirrel tracks, and a view of the bald eagles in residence at the impoundments on the
management area of the Refuge. Starting the New Year with resolve, a hardy group braved the muddy
condition after almost 2 inches of rain fell in the week, to hike the Primrose Farm Preserve on a night
hike. They were rewarded with a close flyover by a screech owl, called in by ace bird caller, Emile
DeVito. Staff are busy preparing materials for the pollinator box building workshop later this month,
and compiling questions for the Pub quiz.

Selected Upcoming Public Programs:
Pollinator Building workshop Jan 24, @ 6:30pm it’s ‘Habitat for Animality’ at our pollinator
building workshop. Learn more about the value of attracting pollinators to your yard then build
a home to do just that.

“Beer and Pizza Pub Quiz. January 20" @ 2pm Grab some friends and come test your

environmental and other knowledge in our pub style trivia quiz.
Environmentally Sound Cleaning Products February 27@ 7pm at Madison Library




Civic, Community and Outreach events

Assuming the Federal government is fully open again by April, we will again partner with Paterson Great
Falls for their successful school Earth day program, held each year for 5" grade to high school Paterson
students at the Marie Ellen Kramer Park adjacent to the falls. 350 student benefitted from our programs
at the event in 2018.

Several collaborations for series of programs are in the works, including a series of three programs on
water quality issues to be held at Summit library. We will table at the Madison Green fair in April, and
more events covering Earth month will be coming now that the new year has arrived.

The Environmentally sound cleaning products program forms part of the Watershed Friendly Living
program and has proven so popular that for 2019 we are partnering with several area libraries to offer it
and other water quality related program content as part of a series to be held at the libraries. We will
partner with Parsippany, Summit and Madison libraries offering our water quality report card, gardening
for wildlife and Stormwater management programs to round out the series. GSWA is intentionally
building collaborative partnerships with downstream locations where we can get our message out in
front of new audiences. This bolsters our outreach efforts to Summit, and our expanded geography in
Parsippany, and the series will be promoted by the library and will prove useful outreach.

Staff have met with S2S staff to begin planning for 2019s
field season, iron out glitches in the fall programming and
§ open up clearer channels of communication for
information for the program. It was a successful meeting
and the Memorandum of understanding has been signed
| that will allow the collaboration to occur for the next 5
years. Seven of the ten spring dates have already been
filled by Jersey City, Newark, Irvington and Somerset
County Schools. We will be writing up the content of
these programs to incorporate the changes as we learn
what content urban students respond to, how to work
with the size and timing of the groups and to utilize the volunteers to greatest effect.

If you or someone you know might be interested in being a field study science mentor for these
programs, please let us know- we’d love to have you briefly share your science experience and pathway
you took to get there to these groups while they sit outside enjoying lunch at the CMA. Contact Hazel.

After presenting to a meeting of the Principals of Paterson in collaboration with Paterson SMART, GSWA
now has a working group of new schools who are interested in getting involved with our water quality
programming and considering green infrastructure at their schools. These include elementary through
high schools, and offers us a great entre to work with new downstream education partners. We will be
working with Rutgers to ascertain what the feasibility for Gl improvements might be at these schools,
and focusing educational opportunities on schools with the most potential to benefit from reduced
storm water runoff and to get education staff into the schools in the coming months.



"3SN UOIIEIO] IO S|ELISIBW
10} s3sanbai jo Asusnbaiy
"3}ISGaM 3} 0} SIOMSIA
JO J3qINU 3Y3 3AIRSGO

Jlessed
ay) uoje pue yIND

Sy €7

1e3A fsaun 9

‘sleliqey sl pue
paysiaiem ay) 3uipiedas
BlEp |NJasn Jayles

"yoJeasal
JIWSpEede J0) pasn

3Q UL Y2IYMm SUOI1EIO)|
BPIAOI "BZ![1N JO MOLIOG
01 3UIjUO S32IN0S3U JBYOD

'$1342ea) Woiy yoeqpaad
'suejd uossa| o
3d1Ape Jo uonesodioau|

FUBISISSY

auljuQ pue ‘asaymiuy

13yIeal /siy Z-T

Jeah fsawn 018

'S3Nss1 J13ads

Jo 38pajmouy Aljenb
-ydiy apiroad 03 saondeld
1uawadeuew 1saq A2Auo)

‘papaau se
pue ‘s3jsua.404 ‘Asiway)
‘A30j023 ‘A3oj01g
‘22UBI3S [BIUBIUOIIAUT

puUE ‘8JUBpUANIY

/papaau se ue ug

"JUS)U0J PISEQ UOISSILI U

WN[N3LLND JUBAS[RJ JHO

suoiuiap weadodd :£10z SuiwwesSoid jeuonesnpi ymso

's35anbau jo Auanbauy 104 JuR3u0 Juipinoad
Ag s101E2NP3 15155y
Anuspusdapul ) *Ajzuspuadspul ‘papaau se .mmEmmen
SJUBLSSASSE 19NPUO? suoREss| . o pue Ajjuapyuod sydasuod 13410 Jo ‘Buydwes
03 Mgy ‘uonedinued. | weens Suory pue vmss yg-9 Jead JT 4oeal 0 wayl ajqeus .wum.ﬁwtw_..:_.EumE
pUE 33UBPUBIY 0] J2p.0 Ul 38pa|mouy| pue ‘SJuUsLISaSSY Wesns
I193ds $19Y2eal IO se yons sduluiely Jayo
-Buiuiesy sy) Joy sisenbai w:mu_._onu
euoneanpa duj 150l
1eadal jo Jsquiny c_m _o._.nu_ o P . m.:w.._g._mw ‘lopow adeasoliaug
‘Apuapuadapul Alanoe asaymiuy Siy p-¢ JeaA /T papasu se P mw_E_wrm 51 w oE_ ano 3uisn uo Suiuiely
3y 1eadal 03 suay2ea} RiErn w.m - i op YlIM SI01eINpa apinold
JO 32UBPIUOD JO |anaT] HIENASGRM BCERSRIML
3] UO SJBYIed) Ul |
‘SJuapniIs ‘papsau se sdoysyiom
JUDAD
siseq paisanbas 10 Jaquinu 1591808 Pa2ZIWOoISND J3Y30 pue
Y] Wouy SUolIenjeAs asaymAuy Sy ¢1-9 10j 1u9ju0d afessna|  ‘9jdoad AYljeaH “ia1em

AyyjesH ‘giim anenby
‘1AM 40} SBuulRLY JIRHO




Land Stewardship Board Report — January 5, 2019

Overview

Since it has only been a month since our
last board report, and that period includes
the holidays, the main stewardship news to
note, is that for much of that time many of
the trails at our 73 acre Conservation
Management Area have been under water!

The incredibly wet season continues to
wreak havoc at the CMA trails, and with the
water table already saturated, every new
rainfall causes standing water and sheet
flow across the flood plain forests that
comprise the property. Much of our recent
stewardship work has involved replacing heavy sections of boardwalk that have floated out of
position, or rolling misplaced trail edging back into place, and conditions have been muddy
underfoot. Intrepid GSWA volunteer Steve Gruber donned his hip waders and managed to
refloat a couple of the boardwalk sections displaced and then stake them into the mud of the
trails with 36" stakes, something that a couple of years ago might have been seen as overkill.
Staff walked the trail s replacing bridge sections that had floated away.

Conditions are amongst the wettest | have seen in 14 years, and we are now having to
consider planning for new boardwalk construction and retrofitting of old boardwalks to both lift
them up and secure them to enable the trails to be accessed more readily year round.

Staff spent two days inspecting the entire property as part of the annual monitoring and 2019
work planning, and an updated 2019 work plan is currently being completed. We will again try
and solicit corporate and community workday partners to be the major labor pool for the work
we will undertake in 2019, and will look to expand the community
involvement with our internship program and second Saturday general
public stewardship workdays. It has been encouraging during the annual
inspection process to observe just how much has been accomplished at
the property over the years. It is easy to focus on all that still needs to be
done, especially when this appears as long lists of tasks to be completed!
Walking over hundreds of feet of boardwalk, built by a variety of corporate
and community volunteers at various times over the last decade, or seeing
the native understory reemerging through the direct efforts of volunteers
who built our 30 acre deer exclosure is heartening. Several boardwalks
built in 2005 by our first Goldman Sachs CTW day are still intact and
holding up well. One advantage of the wet conditions, many of the shrubs
planted seemed to have survived well!

Below is a brief recap for those new to GSWA of our successes during 2018.




During the 2018 field season at the 73 acre conservation management area, corporate and
community workday volunteers gave 2000 hours of volunteer work to the organization. This
has enabled us to: N
e Plant more than 500 shrubs and perennials
e Construct 190 feet of Boardwalk
e Repair 300 feet of boardwalk Fi 4ty o
o Make 350’ boardwalk safer with the addition of hardware cloth S ESS
to prevent slippage.
e Chip, mulch and edge 2 miles of trail,
e Cut back rampant vegetation along 2 miles of trail edge
¢ Restore 700’ streambank to native plant invasive free
conditions.
e Contain and begin eradication of the large 2 acre patch of
wisteria and five leaf akebia on the newly purchased
LaMorgese property.




Communications Board Report — Val Thorpe

January 2019

Events

The first event of 2019 took place Friday, January 4. Adam Palmer led an adventurous group on a night
hike along the Primrose Farms trails. According to Adam, “It went awesome!” Emile DeVito participated
in the hike, and even called in an Eastern Screech Owl to the delight of the participants.

After an arduous and productive team planning effort, 25 events were scheduled for the January-June
2019 timeframe, with additional events still in the planning process.

9 Hikes — Including one where dogs are invited to bring their humans along

9 Speaker Programs — including partnerships with 3 local libraries who will co-brand and co-promote:
e Summit Free Public Library
e Madison Public Library
e Parsippany Troy-Hills Public Library

1 Environmental Pub Quiz — beer, pizza, and environmental trivia for teams of 4 or less. Winners will
receive fun prizes, but the biggest prize of all - power (because we all know knowledge is power) will go
to everyone who attends because they will take home critical, environmental information to share and
use in their everyday lives!

1 Friendraiser — Wine and chocolate pairing, yum!

2 Workshops:
e “Build your own pollinator box.” Kits will be generously crafted for us by Jeff Miller
e “Make your own walking stick.” This is always a very popular workshop

2 Training Sessions:
e Stream Assessment Training - aka: Sandra LaVigne’s water quality volunteers
e Frogwatch/CoCoRaHS Training - for those of you (like me) who don’t know what this means,
these are data gathering volunteers
o Frogwatch is simply a count of various types of frogs by location and date observed.
o CoCoRaHS (Community Collaborative Rain, Hail and Snow Network) is for those who
like to track the weather.
o Data gathered by these volunteers is uploaded into a database that is used by a wide
variety of organizations and individuals.

1 Rockin’ Music Festival — Sally and | had a preliminary meeting on January 7 to start gearing up for this
year’s Great Swamp Great Music event on Sunday, June 9, 2019 (mark your calendar!) The kick-off



planning committee meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 16, 11:00 AM — 12:30 PM. Pizza and
salad will be provided. Hope to see you there!

End-of year Appeal Update — SUCCESS!

The 2018 End-of year Appeal was highly successful. The $15,000 match we were able to offer our donors
was a great incentive. We kicked it off with our #GivingTuesday campaign. It was our second year of
running this email/social media driven campaign:

e 2017:51,375
e 2018: 53,125 (more than double than 2017!)

This was followed by our Year-End Appeal letter that was mailed to our membership base, along with
others who have a connection to GSWA. On December 31, 2018, a follow-up Year-end Appeal email
reminder was sent, generating 27 additional donations.

In total, our combined end-of-year appeal brought in a total of $33,389 (this figure does not include the
match):

e #GivingTuesday campaign: $3,125
e Year-end Appeal: $30,264

That $33,390 then gets broken down into several categories for reporting purposes (Pure Appeal, Major
Gifts, Renewals, etc.) Focusing strictly on “Pure Appeal, we brought in $6,750 against a budget of $3000,
more than double the goal!

*Please use the links below to easily share GSWA's social media! Simply copy
the info and paste into an email to your families, friends, and colleagues:

Please support the Great Swamp Watershed Association (GSWA) by liking and following
us on social media!

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/GreatSwamp
Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/greatswampnij
Twitter: https://twitter.com/GSWA

Learn more about us at our website: www.GreatSwamp.org




G 910N

€ 310N
9 aloN
v 910N
€ 910N

¢ 910N
T 210N

woday wawdojaaaq[xs|x 8T-TE23Q\8T290\6T0Z Ad\Alewwng Juawdojaaaq Ayiuop\suoday\luswdeanagyio

‘Paniadai 184 Jou aABY am YoIym aseydund UOJIONE Ue pUe SuoIINGIIIU0D JUSWSSIIIDAPE eeg uo Suiliem ale 3p 2°S

Aso3a3e souoq Joley ayi sopun Jou pue aiay Jeadde |Im
‘@auelsul 10y ‘Y8 ejen s souop Jolew y "324n0s Jo Ssa|pJedal enuaAaJ BJED ||B SIPNJDU| 'S
's)18 Suiyozew ajelodiod sapnpu| ¢
‘asodind 21y129ds e 10} Jouop ay} Aq pajeusdisap suoiInguIuod aJe sy paldlsey ‘¢
‘suoneuop pajelas ejed pue 3uiaid aa3snJ3 ‘syig Jolew sapnax3 syid Fuiuieisns Ajyuow
pue ‘s}u8 |eiowaw ‘suoljeuop ‘sjeadde ‘s|lemausl ‘SUOIJBUCP JAGWBW Mau 3pN[aul suoiinguiuod diysiaquiaiy
‘19quiawW e paispIsuod si poliad ael3 yjuow g + Syjuow g1 1Se| 3y} ui pajeuop sey oym suohuy ‘'z
‘diysiaquispy ul papnjaul aiam syio Joley ‘siead snoiaaad uj “Suiaig aaisni) sapnjax3

"dn pue 0SS SHIZ [eNpIAIPUL Y T

S9l0N
v16'0EL €98'EVT %ZL OvE‘eLL %IZT ZIT'Eot 89€£°095 961°'£LST 8TS'0LT |elo)
607'VET S8T %01 086'61Z %0ZT SP6'T6T SLE'6TT 0 00Z'? SjuaA3 |ej0]
120°0€ 0 %0 00092 %0 0 0 0 0 1594 21SNIN
881'v0T 68T %81 086'€6T %0ZT SY6'T6T SLE'6TT 0 002 eleg

SUETE]
685'80Z €79'8L %58 09%°LSZ %SPT LIY'0ST 65’81 266'06 6TZ'0TT suonnsu| |BI0L
0 0 io/nas o %0 0 0 0 0 suonezjuedin
05604 000°0S %EQT S6E°L8 %68T S6E'LY 008'68 S68vE 00009 pa12L13say suonepunoy
006°0L 000°0T %56 005'L8 %9ET 00519 005°€8 000°0¥ 000°0S Pa3121i3s34Un SUOIEPUNOY
983°CT €TTT %IZ STT'ET %69 20y v6L'T L60°'T 6TC paioliisalun suonelodio)
£98°€S 00S°L %19 0pe'69 %ETT 005°LE 00S'Z¥ 000'ST 0 paiduisay suonesodiod

suonnisyj
911887 §50°s9 %BLE 006'T0E %E6 0sL'0zt 66E'ZTT #0599 6608S sjenpialpu] [e30L
6S0'SL ¥89°02 %ES 006°9Z %I0T SZ9'0r L¥6°0F #00'7Z ¥28'0¢ diysiaquiaiy
9¥TZ8T 000‘0t %LE 000'S8T %E6 00T'EL 75189 00S'0v 0ST'9E Syio Joley
T16°0E TLEY %8 000°0Y %LV S20'L 00€'E 000"t YA $93)5N41
el ‘ g : : | s|enpiaipu|
|enyy ylelo]5)] 6T, (1aquiadag (12quiadaq
eny) 23q ybnou BO enjd’
8T, aunr _._wn_.“w”wwm it RUn-BL, Bo.% \M h:mhwu %810) ) 19 _Ewmwwn_ ._m_n_:._m““o
- LT, Ainp 03 ssaibold Anf sjeog alASeon  |eny QLA 1

8102 ‘T€ Jaquiadag
Atewwng juawdojaaag Ajyuoi
uoneossy paysialem dwems jealn




8T0Z/TE/ZT 3uipu3 sa1enD - SuIAID [enpialpu)
uoIeI20SSY paysiaiep dwems jealn

vzo'zt 5. (6L ST ST CRA $ 9 001%E $ 88 $ 66 $ 8 06 S8 TLNNSe L0085 $. o S 96 699 § &5 S 9T s8 § T10z/0€/6

09948 $ 009 $ T 00TT 5 IMT $ 8T 006ty 095'8¢ $ S8 5 DE SKST $ 00T $ 0L S86'9 $ UL $ S6E D0E6'LZ S 69 $ 9T 00Tl § zroz/iE/Tt

S65'LT $ T $ £ oy $ 8T $ 8 OOT'El ¢ SLZ'0T $ 1ZT $ ¥I 6891 $ S $ z 0§ s 7 $ SI1 £69'L S & 5 1T e $ ET0Z/1E/E

12L'91Z § Ev8'ss $ LSTT § U s8O'ST §  ISWT ¢ TE o0O'Sk ¢ 8SL'8T $ 95 S €€ 0581 S EB § 89 089S $ 69 $ LT 618'8T S 8L $ IE 6T § €10Z/0E/9
v 0S8'IE  $ L9 985'L6 S vi6'8L S 8L T18E'S $ 8zr TEX's  $ v86 SEB'Z9 $ 6 925 $ |elog

8SL'6 $ oot R O 54 TOOW, S L erae $ £82°9 $ 8 $ IT EBOT $. 29,8, 8 &5p5 $ 6 S 68 vBEW S 89 Lo o T €T02/0€/6

6L5'SE $ EETT S E 00N § 0T $ Lz 00T'SY ¢ 6L0'VE $ Sv L1 8% $ 69 S IS ([ES'E 0§ L9 $ 62 6E6'8C S 6 $ L1 S€8 S ET0T/TE/TT

6LL'LE $ weST S v SEOT $  TEXT  § vl 0STUT ¢ vST'oT $ 16§ IT (66 S 06 S$ O 568 $ €S § BET LSZ'L S 9 § Zz SOOT $ YT0Z/TE/E

0T¥'80Z $ w6Z's $ BT S 9 S8%T § O06ET $ €T T96TE ¢ 8Sb'8T $ S99 S 6E EEST $ S $ 65 S5TE S 89 $ 8ZE SST'TT S 69 $ 9 sy § VI0Z/0E/9
8T SSE'EZ ¢ 89 88946 S €26'S8 S 19 092's  § €71 _8Iv's $ #i  069°L9 $ 2L SSS'ES 1eloL

6S2'ST $  8tv $ T &8 $ L6 $ 9 005's H v88's $ T §$ 9 s S0 B8NS AT 000T S i8S ¢ 21T PIs $ 98 S B SE % v10Z/0€/6

8T6°LL $  sT9 S £ ST ¢ 00T $ OF Q00T S £SO'VE $ vS  $ €T 0STT S 0L $ BE 09T $ 0L S OIv 8v8'ST $ 85 $ T S8TT $  vioz/e/Ti

9E0'ZZ $ S09% $ T O1IE $ 00SZT $ T 00ST $ 9ZE0T $ ot $ v 095 $ 49 S E 007 $ 8§ S LpT 1058 S & $ ST S90'T $ ST0Z/TE/E

99690 $ €pL'T6 $ 980T $ T SEETL $ SEST § IE 889Uy & 099°2E $ (8 $ 8T ST $ S8 $ S9 BYSS $ L9 $ PSE LZB'ET $ W 0§ Tz 098 ST0Z/0E/9
LT 0298y $ SL  STI'TVT $ 98r'vL $ SZEY  § 0Z1 _1¥8'9 $ 0£8 EEV'LS S 26 £88'5$ eyl

TLV'TE $ s S T 0sPY S:| 10 s Ui UpostE 0§ 1Z5'9 S 8 8T < $ v $ o1 St $ 8§ $ S8 66T ¢ & 5 BL. T % stoz/oE/6

Z08°E6 $ 865 $ 9 06SE ¢ S6ST $ 9E STHLS LBLTE $ 19 § 6T Sit S 19 S$ 65 IZ9E $ wL $ TEE 9S¥'vT S 10T $ 6Z SE6T S stoz/tefTT

TET'9Z $ 887 ¢ v O06ETT § g8S $§ 9 O00SE § £S9'0T $ T $ 6 St $ 61 $ 6 S $§ S 8L 8Kl $ 05 § L1 SsB $ 9t10z/18/E

799'892 § 9STOTT § o6t ¢ ST 06T & SIEZ S 9z 00z'09 [ STS'VT $ v8 § ST 00UT $ ¥9 $ 9 00ET § T2 $ 59T 008'ST $ v $ BT STET $ 910Z/0€/9
2T 9Ly § 8L 659'291 § vS8'9L s BE (vi'T  § . 98 086'Ss § EV8 £L06'T9 $ 86 0Zz'9¢ 12301

E6¢'LT $ TWWr $§ € (9EIT § @88 $ L SIT9 S 1168 $ 09 $ S o0t 50 WSS e NSoET S 99 $ 0TT 96 $ 5 S 6 S § 910Z/0E/6

S78'€6 $ IES S ¥ STWT 0§ 1997 $ LE BEFI9 % 192'0E $ 95 5 9L 568 $ 89 $ 95 S08E $§ i $ OIE T120'v2 S ¥9 S ¥Z Oovs't § 9T0Z/TE/TT

vST68 $ TEET  $ v swL $ E68Y $ ¥I 00s®9 ¢ 626'ZT $ 88 S I L5071 § & $ 1 st $ 49 $ Svr L' $ v5  § 6E ST LT0Z/TE/E

08Z'z87 $ 8081L $ B98'T $ IT 0S50z $ SZET $ o0Z sSoser ¢ £SL°vT $ 66 $ S Sev $ 9. $ 9T O086'T S SL $ 89T 88I'0T $ 08 $ 9T 060T $ L10Z/0€/9
82 TI60E § SOT 9pT'Z8T $ [ $ 8E 09T ¢ 98 TETL § 0LL 61085 $ L0T 0Z6'9 % e3o)

T9E'LT $ 005 $ 1 005 L G TR SR T 2988 $ T 5 6 059 $ o9 § ot SzE S 49 S S6 LSED S €5 S 67 O0EST $ L10Z/0E/6

LBE'V6 $ 866 $ 0L 9.£'% $ ST $ ¢ oores  $ 11682 $ 18 5 0L U8 $ B S IE I¥Z $ S8 $ 1L 86Tz S 98 S IE 09T § LI0Z/1E/fTE

LY'16 $ TET § £ SUY 0§ sevr $ L1 00E9L  $ 96601 $ 8 § L 989 $ €8 $ £ 0§ s 9 $ Skl 190% $ S* § T 000 § 8T0Z/TE/E

L68L8T $ LL9%L  §  w0ZT  § T 09891 $ 91T § sz owte S 120°9Z $ 68 $ Z1 £9p $ w6 $ S SEY $ 9§ 65T £59%1L $ 69 S ST 0T $  BT0T/OE/9
8 O00EE ¢ 25 251°89 ¢ 67 68T'v $ 90T 096°L § OEE tIv'LZ $ St 0SZ'ES lejoy

ZOE'6T $ sy $ E ST $ L9 S 1T 200 $ SL8°0T S L. 5 Er To0h S° 9L Sor orTd S i S TOT vBLYL S 65 $ St oBR ' $ 810Z/0E/6

£10°S6 $  SLE $ S S8BT $ 1 $ Tv 0SITS ¢ 886'1E $ 661 $ 9T 88IS S S S 06 0SL'9 $ 98 $ 62 089'%6T $ 6L $ 0E OLET $  sTOT/IE/TT

- $ i0/AIQk io/nan - $  lo/naw io/man io/n1a# i0/nias 610Z/1E/E

STEPIT § . S 10/nias Io/nia - $  io/nak io/mias i0/nia# i0/MaK 6102/0€/9

[e101 188, [RS8 n_:ﬂﬂ._,.t»z Bay # ..Hﬁw. Bay #  swo ol n_h_u%_.“.,:..h: By %  uopeuog By %  jeeddy By g _smm:._w_ﬁ_.;gum BAy  # MmN papug3ienenp



Great S wamp Watershed Association

Membership Count Quarter Ending Dec 31, 2018

30-Sep 31-Dec 31-Mar 30-Jun
Fiscal Year Q-1 Q-2 Q-3 Q-4
2019 1660 1627
2018 1687 1706 1657 1737
2017 1790 1726 1740 1779
2016 1688 1788 1736 1797
2015 1670 1707 1664 1775
2014 1519 1547 1483 1666
2013 1543 (1305) 1580 1447 1485
2012 1559 (1458) 1674 (1526) 1596 (1408) 1575 (1395)
2011 1504 (1371) 1557 (1443) 1468 (1354) 1588 (1476)
2010 1569 (1463) 1696 (1552) 1590 (1445) 1556 (1416)
2009 1752 (1540) 1799 (1681) 1687 (1549) 1680 (1556)
2008 1927 2052 1888 1932 (1942)
2007 1752 1881 1726 1925 (2247)

G:\Development\Reports\Membership Count - Individual Giving Reports\[Quarter_Ended_Dec31_2018.xIsx)Membership Count

* Count is based on donors who have given in the 14 months prior to the end of the quarter.

New numbers are bolded, previous numbers are in parenthesis.




paniadal 33A jou Inq (MS°Z$) upd 4qv 311D ‘(M0SS)| 22
‘papJeme sjuels) sapnjau] ejeq uwnjod wd3 ‘(MS'TS) "upd eipay
jen3ay ‘Jodal siyi jo asodand Jo4
(ME°£S) 1SM “(15°£S) 1aheg| Tz
Suipuad suonenddy| 07
61
pted 19A ou sjuess pue ‘sanss| 3unun|LIY'0STS LSE'SETS 0002Z$ |000‘€L$  |000°00TS sjuein |ejol| 81
‘(31553) 123pnq 430 sjuead sapnpoul J1a
LT
(d0T)'up4 4aneg pue "(jOT) upd| 005‘T9S 00S'€6$ 000‘0T$ |000‘0v$  |000°0S$ [lei01 gng 91
Aqany "d°v wouy squesd sapnjouj osje Jiq
~ISZ$ P2t am ueah pug ~ Jooo’ss ooo'ozs  [oo0'szs [uonepuno euoioin ST
N0Z$ dA0qe JueID 1SUI4 - 000's$ |ooo‘0zs 000'6Z$ |uonepunog Aqaiy ‘NS v1
‘ ‘ - - pajausayun uonepunoy| €1
(12303 5j0€$) solep pauueld|S6E‘LYS 008'68$ 000°ZT$ |000‘€€$  |000°0SS |leloagns Z1
J0 peaye p,22J sjueld sapnjaul osje Jig
J0'ES WOy pasied [9A37] ‘UoREINPI uosialed - uoneanpl au3 [000°z$  [000°€S 000's$  [wueio diysiapean T
uostaled 1oy Suipuny jo Jeah pug - [N 404 up4 Ajlunwiwio)
© )5TS 3R 3uesd poas am Jeah pug uoneonp3‘au  |000's$ |0000T$  [000°5TS [upd Apwes yuemssan | 0T
| 0TS 1 1uesS p2a1 am Jeak pug Suuoyuo  [0006S  |000°s$  [0000TS |'upd dnand easy nwwing 6
191eMA INpP3 "AUT
|9A91)STS @A0Qe JuesD ISy | ~ uoneanp3 ‘Au3 000's$ |000'st$  |000‘0Z$ |uonepunojisiAr 8
. - I ~ pajusay uonepunod| /
8T0Z/80 193pNnq 4210 4SS JueID D3Sd|00S LES 00SZv$ €303 qng 9
8T0Z 230 ANADY ON pajdusay ajesodior| ¢
8T0Z/TT AS°LS Piemy Juesd 4Sva|zzovs LSS6S |ej03 qns 1%
870 22 AuARIY ON o  papugsaiun ajelodior| €
4
T




